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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Cooper Hall is a three-story irregularly shaped building with 
a high basement. The building is located toward the north end of 
the Sterling College campus and faces east. It is approximately 
120 feet long and 50 feet wide. The Gothic-influenced structure 
features an entry tower with an overall height of 75 feet.

The exterior walls are constructed of rough hewn limestone blocks 
quarried at Strong City in Chase county and laid in irregular courses. 
The individual stones vary in size. A belt course is featured at 
the floor line; the stones below it are larger than those above. 
Eight circular corner towers surmounted with decorative caps begin in 
the top half of the building and extend above the roof line.

The gable roof is covered with wood shingles and features simple 
dormers with windows to provide light to the attic. A number of 
stone chimneys with plain stone caps enhance the roof line. The roof 
is separated from the wall by a decorative cornice. The entry tower, m 
which originally had an additional story with a pyramidal roof, now has 
a crenelated wall extending above a flat roof. (The tower was 
damaged by a windstorm around 1949 and the upper portion had to be 
removed.) The entry porch dominates the facade with its gable roof 
and simple arch opening for the entry door.

Most windows are tall slender rectangles with a flat single 
stone lintel at the heads; however, some have arched heads of heavy 
stone. A few windows consist of half-circle openings with heavy 
stone trim. Some of the window glazing is done with stained glass. 
All windows in the north wall have been closed with stone. Metal 
window frames are being used to replace the deteriorated wood frames.

An examination of old photographs reveals that the second floor 
windows at the north end of the east facade have undergone consider­ 
able modifications over the years. Presently there are three window 
openings with pointed arches. Formerly all windows at that spot 
were framed within one large arched opening.

The interior has been completely remodeled except for the stair 

cases.

The east entrance is no longer used as the main entry. Since 
the campus has grown to the west and south, what was the west base­ 
ment entrance has become by common usage the main entrance.

Except for the removal of part of the tower and the window alter­ 
ations the exterior is basically unchanged.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Cooper Memorial College came into existence through the efforts 
of a group of Sterling businessmen who wanted to expand the growth and 
prosperity of their town. In 1886 they formed the Sterling Land and 
Investment Company to attract railroads and new residents.

Those involved in the investment company reasoned that the 
presence of a college would encourage emigration of the quality people 
Sterling sought to attract. Thus, the investors contacted the Kansas 
Synod of the United Presbyterian Church in October, 1886, and offered 
to donate a choice ten acre site upon which would be erected a $25,000 
structure provided that the church would endow, operate and maintain 
the college. The synod had been interested in founding a college in 
the Midwest and agreed to the offer with the stipulation that it be 
given five years to raise the $25,000 endowment fund. The contract 
was signed October 22 , 1886.

The school was to be named Cooper Memorial College in honor 
of the Rev. Joseph Tate Cooper, a respected Presbyterian clergyman 
and college administrator from Allegheny, Pennsylvania, who had 
recently died.

Plans for Cooper Memorial, drawn up by architect William Gall 
of Arkansas City, called for a three-story building with a high base­ 
ment. The contract was awarded to George H.£vans of Topeka and con­ 
struction began in March, 18£7. ^"""*^

When Cooper Memorial College opened its doors for the fall 
term November 1, 1887, the structure itself was completed, but only 
the second floor rooms had been finished and readied for occupancy. 
Enrollment that first year consisted of 13 preparatory students and 
none at the college level. There were only three instructors. In 
1889, Dr. F. M. Spencer was named as the college's first president, 
and with time the enrollment gradually but steadily increased.

The building was slowly finished as funds permitted and as the 
rising enrollment necessitated more classrooms. In its early years 
Cooper Memorial served the community as more than a college. Its 
chapel was the place of worship for the local congregation of the
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8. Second United Presbyterian church. Classrooms were also used
for Sunday school and young people's meetings. Such usage served to 
bring the community into the college and fostered their regard for 
it.

Cooper remained the only permanent structure on the campus 
until 1919. The name of the college was changed to Sterling 
College in 1920.

Cooper Memorial College building, now known as Cooper Hall, 
continues to provide classrooms and serve as the administration 
building. It is the focal point on the Sterling College campus 
and a landmark in the community. Architecturally, the structure 
is a fine example of Gothic-djafluenced Kansas institutional 
architecture.

9. Erwin, K. T., "Home of Cooper College Growing, Thriving Center,"
Topeka Capital , Sept. 9, 1919. 

"First Annual Catalogue, Cooper Memorial College, for Academical
Year Ending June 22, 1888" (Arkansas Valley Times, Sterling,
Ks., 1887) . 

Gardner, H. Warren, "A Brief Study of the Founding, Development
and Growth of Rice County to 1900" (An unpublished paper
presented to the Honors Committee, Sterling College, May,
1962, in partial fulfillment of requirements, for the honors
project). 
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Program," Wichita Morning Eagle, March 14, 1963. 
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reprinted as a Centennial Souvenir by Ross W. Zimmerman Real
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